II.

I11.

IV.

COVENTRY BOARD OF EDUCATION
APPROVED MINUTES
MEETING OF THURSDAY, AUGUST 27, 2009

Members Present: Larry Pietrantonio, Chairman
Kathleen Ryan, Vice Chairman
Cheryl Trudon, Secretary
John Barrett
Mary Kortmann
Michael Whitham
Richard Williams

Administrators Present: Dr. Donna Bernard, Superintendent
Sherry Holmes, Fiscal Services Director
Judith Richard, Pupil and Staff Support Services Director

Also present were Troy Hopkins, CHS Principal; Paul Noel, Physical Plant and Facilities
Director; and several citizens. All motions are directed to the Coventry Board of Education.

CALL TO ORDER
By: Chairman, L. Pietrantonio at 7:35 p.m.
Place: Town Hall Annex

SALUTE THE FLAG
The Pledge of Allegiance was led by L. Pietrantonio

AUDIENCE OF CITIZENS

Tom Pope of 683 Brigham Tavern Road talked about a recent meeting of the Town
Council and how it was mentioned that the schools had been awarded a boat motor and
trailer for the science department. He asked what happened to the boat motor and
trailer. Dr. Bernard replied that the items were no longer in possession of the schools,
but that she would get detailed information to Mr. Pope. In addition, Mr. Pope wanted
to know if an inventory list of all assets were maintained by the schools; for instance he
wanted to know if a list of purchases and disposals of special education equipment is
maintained. Dr. Bernard replied yes.

L. Pietrantonio closed Audience of Citizens.

REPORT OF THE SUPERINTENDENT

A. Information: Opening of the 2009-10 School Year
B. Summer Update
C. Upcoming Goal Reports: September 10 and 24, October 8 and 29

Dr. Bernard said the district is preparing for the 09-10 opening of school. She noted
items in the Board Bulletin and the Board meeting packet related to staff development
activities happening this week. She reviewed the technology workshops that were
happening on Friday afternoon for staff. She continued with the concerns surrounding
the H1N1 virus and handed out two letters, which will go home with students on
Monday. She noted, the projections for HIN1 are large for people in collective areas.
She said Mr. Noel and his staff have been brought up-to-date in cleaning procedures.
She reviewed the other procedures related to possible HIN1 concerns. She mentioned
there are 5 teachers new to the system. In addition she handed out information on

Coventry Board of Education Minutes of August 27, 2009 — Page 1 of 7



VI

VIIL

ARRA and noted that no money has been received yet, but the Board will be brought up-
to-date when more information is learned.

Dr. Bernard continued, the school principals and staff have been working on ABC this
summer and she reviewed the administrators fall goal presentation schedule.

Dr. Bernard introduced Mr. Noel to review the maintenance projects that have
happened over the summer. Mr. Noel said the schools have been cleaned from top to
bottom. In addition, he said there is a list of projects that were completed. He reviewed
items which were completed at each site. At CHS compliance work on equipment in the
wood shop was completed; the patio was finished in front of the high school as part of a
boy scout eagle project; compliance work was done in the tech room; the art rooms had
some work done; the nurses room had insulation installed in the wall; work was done
from lightening strike damage; the air conditioning in the computer server room was
improved; the weight equipment that was donated long ago, which was broken, was
removed ago; a shed (built by students) was installed on the high school campus. At
CNH the catch basin was replaced; the air handling units in the gym were replaced; a
grease trap was rebuilt; air conditioning in the enrichment room was installed; At GHR
pressure treated wood and related mulch and soil were replaced; At CGS they made a
computer room; playground work was done. He noted that much of the outside ground
work was done by public works. District-wide staff training for HIN1 was completed;
energy audits began; additional compliance training was provided for all maintenance
and custodial staff; broken glass was replaced; and usual summer items such as
deliveries were completed.

Mr. Whitham asked about what is being done with the roofs. Mr. Noel said they are
working on what to do “in the meantime” but the roof project paperwork is moving
forward.

CONSENT AGENDA (VOTE: One vote for all items)
A. Accept Resignation of Erin Holub, CHS Teacher
B. Accept Resignation of Elizabeth Winterhalter, CHS Teacher

MOTION: To accept the consent agenda as noted.
By: M. Kortmann Seconded: K. Ryan
Result: Motion passes unanimously.

REPORT OF CHAIRMAN

L. Pietrantonio said he hoped everyone had a nice summer. He noted that the RFQ for
the roof project is being put together. He said the visits by the bidders will need to be
coordinated with Mr. Noel’s office.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES
A. VOTE: Approve minutes of June 11, 2009

MOTION: To approve the minutes of June 11, 2009
By: C. Trudon Seconded: M. Kortmann
Result: Motion passes unanimously.

Coventry Board of Education Minutes of August 27, 2009 — Page 2 of 7



XI.

B. VOTE: Approve minutes of June 25, 2009

MOTION: To approve minutes of June 25, 2009
By: R. Williams Seconded: M. Kortmann
Result: The motion to approve the minutes passes 5-0-2 (Ryan and
Whitham abstain).

REPORT OF BOARD MEMBERS
A. Information: Transportation Committee Report — C. Trudon and S. Holmes

C. Trudon said the Transportation Committee did meet and approved bus routes for
publication. She noted that representatives of the new transportation company M&J
were present at the meeting. She said M&dJ was able to provide a greater number of
larger busses, which will hold more students to help alleviate overcrowding. Mr.
Williams asked about the larger busses. Mr. Barrett explained the larger busses and
noted that it makes a significant difference. C. Trudon continued to review stops which
were discussed at the meeting. Minutes from the meeting were in the packets for the
members.

B. Information: Fiscal committee Update — C. Trudon and S. Holmes

C. Trudon said the June and July reports were reviewed at the Fiscal meeting and
noted that all Board members received those reports. She noted the sample reports that
will be produced for the new Food Services accounting. She said the town will monitor
the revenue and Ms. Holmes’ office will monitor expenses for that department. It was
noted that the Food Services ended the year in “the positive.”

R. Williams asked, regarding the Food Service reports, if they now included all of the
expenses associated with the Food Service department. Ms. Holmes said yes, all should
be included. They reviewed several accounts in detail and what would show on the
reports in the near future. R. Williams commented that this report was a great start.
Dr. Bernard noted that both Beth Pratt as the Food Service Coordinator and Scott
Sadinsky as the District Food Service Liaison will come later in the fall to report details
of the new program.

J. Barrett clarified that the propane and telephone expenses are in the Food Service
account reports and asked if that will mean if the department will be fully self-
sufficient. Dr. Bernard said it is the goal for 2009-10 to be fully self sufficient. J.
Barrett asked if the Board would still subsidize those items as was projected in the BOE
09-10 budget. Ms. Holmes said the Food Service department would pay for those items.
J. Barrett said the Board had a significant discussion on this and there was a 4-3 vote
not to do that. Ms. Holmes replied that was for the 08-09 school year. R. Williams and
J. Barrett both said, no, that was a discussion about going forward in 09-10. There was
discussion among the group as to what was actually discussed and voted on in the past
regarding these accounts. M. Whitham said the vote was taken, and the following
month during the review of the minutes, it was stated by a couple of people that if they
understood what the actual motion was on the floor, they would have voted differently.
He said the minutes should be reviewed and perhaps another vote should be taken. He
said the fear at the time was, if the Board put the burden on the department they
couldn’t balance their budget. He said the motion he put out was to transfer the money
from where it is now into this bucket. He said he thinks that got missed in the vote.
There was further discussion regarding which year held which burden and which
accounts would possibly go over. L. Pietrantonio said the minutes would be checked.

Coventry Board of Education Minutes of August 27, 2009 — Page 3 of 7



J. Barrett noted the transfers and the dues and fees account and the amount of $16,817
that was in excess and was transferred out. He said a total of $35K for the year was
transferred out of that account and it is very large amount that was not spent on dues
and fees. C. Trudon said all of the accounts that had surpluses had such because no one
was allowed to go anywhere or spend anything because the district was on critical
spending. J. Barrett noted $10K left in travel and asked if that was left for the same
reason. Ms. Holmes said yes. J. Barrett said perhaps the Board could look closer at
those accounts and manage them closer. C. Trudon said that is not how you would want
to do it every year; it was a reaction to the circumstances we faced at the beginning of
the year. K. Ryan said that is professional development money. C. Trudon said you do
not want to continually eliminate that money.

M. Whitham said the transfer sheets from the year, and perhaps last year, will be
looked at as the budget development process begins to see where the realistic numbers
fall so that so many transfers do not need to be done. C. Trudon said every year you
move in that direction, but you cannot account for the irregularities.

J. Barrett asked why the budget was $60K over in utilities. Dr. Bernard said the
decrease in use and the increase in rate is the issue. R. Williams said if the projections
are that far off, it should be looked at sooner. The group discussed the utility billing
cycles and summer expenses regarding utilities.

R. Williams noted the utility expenses for the 08-09 school year as being $300K and the
projection for the year being about the same. He asked how we could be off by $30K in
one month if we projected it semi accurately. The group discussed transfer amounts
and projected amounts for 08-09. J. Barrett said we need to look at this year and that
we are going to be in the hole already, because we have allocated the same amount for
09-10. J. Barrett made the request to the Fiscal Committee to look at the utility
account and make a transfer sooner rather than later. C. Trudon said they would take
it up at Fiscal.

Ms. Holmes noted, the position statement needed to be done first, before any transfers
could be done. The group discussed what was needed first and when. C. Trudon said
the topic would be brought up at Fiscal.

Mr. Noel noted that work has been done with spreadsheets which was not available
when the budget was being put together, but now it can be included when the
discussions are had this year.

M. Kortmann agreed saying that both the position statement, and the utility
information that Mr. Noel has, need to be addressed when the conversation is had.

J. Barrett said the Social Security and Medicare accounts do not balance. He asked for
clarification as to who pays into what accounts. Ms. Holmes explained the different
employees, their statuses, and what they may or may not pay. Due to the complexity of
this issue, Ms. Holmes said for the next Fiscal meeting she would have a document
formed explaining payroll deductions.

J. Barrett asked about the Heat Energy transfer. Ms. Holmes said the oil tanks were
topped off.

J. Barrett asked about the Student Transportation account. Ms. Holmes said magnet
school transportation, special education, late busses, and other transportation expenses
came in at the end of year. The group discussed different transportation items versus
what was projected.

Coventry Board of Education Minutes of August 27, 2009 — Page 4 of 7



J. Barrett said the Board needs to take responsibility for its own budget. He said it is
being left to the administration to handle the problem and not the Board. C. Trudon
said the Fiscal Committee is fully aware and kept informed in advance of what the
shortages are and from where it is going to come. J. Barrett said the Board was not
allowed to make decisions on whether to spend the money, but had to instead cover
expenditures that were already made.

J. Barrett noted the voucher supplement on July 23 and a particular transfer from the
Board of Education to the CHS student activity fund. He said the high school dipped
into the student activity account to pay for state festival participation fees for band and
choir. He said his issue is not the amount or the activity. M. Kortmann said the place
in the activity fund that the money probably came out of was the band booster support
money, which is their right to utilize as needed. M. Kortmann said if things need to be
paid quickly, the activity account check can be cut quickly and then they ask for
reimbursement from the school. J. Barrett said that is interim borrowing. J. Barrett
said this is just an example. He said he disagrees with this accounting practice. He
continued the money should not come out of the student activity fund first. C. Trudon
said it has to do with the timing. Ms. Holmes agreed saying the Board cannot cut
checks at a moments notice, but the activity funds can. J. Barrett said if the Board has
it budgeted, the invoice should come directly to the Board and be paid that way. He said
this happens in several instances throughout the year and it is inappropriate. He said
it happens with Travel too; people pay for it themselves and then we reimburse them
and it shouldn’t happen that way. He said it should not have to go through the third
party. Dr. Bernard said most organizations only accept credit cards, which the district
does not have. She said once an employee pays, they are reimbursed. She added that
the administration is more than happy to answer any specific questions. M. Kortmann
said it is an expense report, which is tracked with receipts.

K. Ryan noted that the accounts are audited yearly and if there was a problem with the
procedure the auditors would certainly bring it to the attention of the Board.

J. Barrett asked what happened to the 08-09 $3600 surplus. Ms. Holmes said it goes
back to the town. He confirmed that the Board was not given the opportunity to
address spending $3600 specifically. C. Trudon said the Board was given every
opportunity to make suggestions regarding any overage that was left.

M. Whitham said there are a few line items that need to be reset by doing transfers. He
said we know they are going to be over; the chances are real high that they will be over.
He said unemployment, student transportation possibly, and utilities for sure, should be
reset at the next Fiscal meeting. He said that way they can be managed from this point
on, so we are not chasing a number. In addition, he said he would also like a wish list
set in priorities, so if there is extra money it would be spent on items on that list. He
said then if there is money left at the end of the year it goes to the town, but at least we
can hit the items like books for the kids, and athletic supplies.

J. Barrett said there is a surplus in library books and periodicals. C. Trudon said it
could be a variety of reasons why that was not done.
VOTE: Approve Budget Transfers as Presented

MOTION: To approve the Budget Transfers as of June 30, 2009.
By: C. Trudon Seconded: M. Kortmann
Result: Motion passes 6-1 (Barrett against).

Coventry Board of Education Minutes of August 27, 2009 — Page 5 of 7



XII.

XIII.

XIV.

M. Whitham said some of these long conversations can be painful and can take us into
the long hours of the night. He noted especially in the case of Food Services it is a
perfect example of the back and forth dialog and we adopted some things. He said it
turned out to be a quick turnaround; going deep in the red to coming out ahead. He said
sometimes these conversations are good. L. Pietrantonio agreed, saying they are all
good and he applauded Fiscal for what they’ve accomplished in the past two years.

As part of Report of Board Members, J. Barrett noted a document from October 2008
from the Superintendent’s office which had recorded statistics of students’ grades. He
asked how some of those students were doing. Dr. Bernard asked for clarification as to
what document he was referring. She said those answers could be addressed during Mr.
Hopkins goal report. Mr. Barrett asked that the document be added as part of the
record this evening.

EXECUTIVE SESSION
Pursuant to CGS-1-200(c)(6)(A), the Board of Education will go into Executive Session
for discussion of the Custodian/Maintenance Negotiations

MOTION: Pursuant to CGS-1-200(c)(6)(A), the Board of Education will go into
Executive Session for discussion of the Custodian/Maintenance
Negotiations with the Superintendent and the Fiscal Services
Director Present at 9:03 p.m.

By: K. Ryan Seconded: C. Trudon
Result: Motion passes unanimously.

OPEN SESSION
The Board of Education returned to Open Session at 9:39 p.m.

ADJOURNMENT
MOTION: To adjourn the meeting at 9:39 p.m.
By: K. Ryan Seconded: M. Kortmann

Result: Motion passes unanimously.

Respectfully submitted:

Kimberlee Michaud
Board Clerk

September 10, 2009
Approved

Coventry Board of Education Minutes of August 27, 2009 — Page 6 of 7



‘sagak

MaJ 1x0u atp) 19a0 A[1YS1]s asealoap 0] stoquInu Ino padxe uvd am uonvlside] sseoon
[BSIBATUN &Y YIAY "CO0F Ul L0]'F 18 wonoaload 1ey) asoqe [[om adam apy “(papaooal
awalk 1se1e] aY1) ¢OOF 10 9FG'T 1B 8q 01 Juawi[jodue pajenoled jpaload uoronasuoco ay
‘OSIV "80-L00G 40] €8 L 1 Jo uonpaload o) saoqe [[am ade aam ‘K1usao]) 1o] suonoaload
JuBUI[[oIus woreonpy jo juswrjaieds(] e1elg oY) 1e Sunjoo| ge('E sem potiad

1e9K-()| O] I9A0 TUSUI[[0IUD 95 BIOAR B[, "§6G1 Ul CFE ] 18 1S0M0] PUB FO0F UL 9Z1'%
18 1seys1y oy ‘sdaf[ea pue syvad usaq aavy 819yl (LO0F — 8661) A101SIY JusUI[[oIUS
aeas-] B SUOO] "gI0'F SEM LOQF 19q012() 10] TUSUI[[0IUD S AIIUDAC)) G

TWOOISSBD 9y}

Jo adoos a) puoiaq suonUaAIaUl [BIOIABYA( PUR oIS pEDE [joq armbad oym sjuapn)s
d0] s[ooyag aqng Aruaao)) e aoepd ul sumasord [puononasur Sup ay) jo auo

st weadoad sy [, ‘sensst L1eun] 1p 09 anp Juaueow]d Aep UV 9F — VAL — Ldd ®
yanoayy weadoad oy ut paow|d alem sjusapnIs | pue Sjuapnis g, oae ¢ [[0oyos wodj
poajjedia usaq pry § SU0sEAL JO £19LIBA B 10] 2J491]) 2dam SJUapPNIS asal]], "Weldod]
[ooyog Jafy 2] Ul pajjodus sjuapnis [ [ adam a1ay) goOF Lquaidag jo sy p#

‘SHPAID PAIB[MUWINDIE 1M D)) A J191) Surieduiod

Aq eowd o STIULPIYS B DYDY M HOBI) 01 a|qe aq [[1S [[Ia g sesodind Sunse

pue Sunaoded ayw)s d0] sjuapnis jo youra) deay 01 Avm I9qjaq B S1 WIYSAS SIY ], "posiaad
aq [[Im HO) A 119Y] pUB WOOIIWOY UDWYSOL] B Ul UTBLWDI [[IM S1IPaID | uBy) sso]

)M spuapnlg eprdd jxeu ay) 0] aaowt A[[BIAJ0, 0] 191SoWas |S11] ay) Jo pua ayl Aq
S1IpaIo yBnous ured [[Im S1USPNIS 9soY] ‘SOSED 1S0W U] ‘SSB[D Jay] JIim ojenpeds pus

IMDTIUTUOL) “SIUDAOD)
s[ooyag aTjqn ] A1jUsa0))

poaads 0} dn j03 03 sjuepngs adeanoous [[Im s1y [, “Juswaambal ¢'¢ oy} payoral a3mnb

1 upARY Aa() JT U9As Woodswoy adowoydos v ut paor|d aq [[Im S1IPaID 4§ YiIm sjuapnis
[V "9p®is ()T 8Y1 0] SAOUL 0] SJIPaID ¢'C 1SBI] 18 9ABY SN sjuapnis ‘adurexa

q0,] OPRIE IXOU 91} 0 WO SAOUL 0] ISJNA 1PID ¢ [ B STAI9Y [, "S1Padd Jo peajsul
(HOA) wonEnpRIL Jo Iua )L Iay/s1y 01 puodsalion [[Im [9Aa] apelds s juapnis v auwal siy)
Surmuifey wsAs Funodad Juapnis JUSISISU0D SI0UL B 10] ‘2)8)S 9] 18 SJUB)[NSU0D
woay ndut s Suope ‘Iaylaso) payIom sARY aURPIME pur UoNBISIUNILIpPE

Ay, ‘aprIE 1XaU aY) 40J papasu s)Ipads patsmbad ay) uIBlqo 10U pIp SpULpPNYs Gf [0S
U AW W T = w8 T =wl 1= 1= puf C1 = 5] = M - 2PEID YIYSIY y3noayy
UDLBSIDPUTY SOPRIE UL Yor( Play 2dam oYM [B10] Ul SIUIPNIS § 21am 2LV, O

"SI01UDS

0 pue ‘siotun( ¢ ‘sodowoydos [ [ ‘USUIYSAI] G (PRIUNOD 2IDM MO[2Q 10 (+(]) ££°T JO VD
¥ PBY JBY] SjUapNlg a[eas ()'f B U0 paseq si Y L) S [0oyog 4B Arjuaso)) ‘siapedd
YIXIS () PUB ‘SIopRIS [IU2A0s ¢ ‘S1apead YIyse [ [ :paiunco alam mo[aq 10 (+(]) 69

JO V45 © pey jey) sjuepnig a[eas quiod (O B U0 paseq STy L) S,[00Ydg 9] UeyieN
de)) eBraaar |, 10 (], B PEY SIUSPNIS YOIYM aUTULID)ED 0] [0oyag YS1[] Snjuaao))
pue [poyag afe] ueyiey de)) 1e pesn sem afeloay 1UI0] aprIr) oY1 ‘praISU]
quapns aad s, pue s, Jo equmu ay) Sunndios 1o] mofe jou saop SININ

G = Y[ S9PRIS 10] PAUTRIGO B JOU P[NOd BIBD SIY] 05 ‘[00yog U0SKIDq0Y] ] @8108r) 18
US)ILIM PUBY ade spaed podad pue [00(og JBUILIEILG A1USA00) 18 Pasn 10U ade sapeld
191197 "SABBISAB ], PUR (], MM SJUSPIIS JO TUN0D S)RIN0E UR 195 0 JnoLjj1p

SEM 11 ‘SULINONIYSAL JJB1S pUue aqemijos GV @Yl ut suoneol[duos o) eng] g4 % [#

SSdoms

(M) jsawad jsed Ul uBy) Ja[[BWs JuaLU|oaus ay) ST AYA (Q
() ¢sruapms uoisndxs jou spuapn)s asay) Jo Aue aay weasord [poyos
Ja1j® Hoo[2.0 § 0] § 9] Ul pajjodus A[JULLIND ade B[] SjUapnls jo equinu ay, (y
(¢ ) "opead s awak snotaaad ay) yeadad 0] aeas sIy) ¥orq ploy sHUpNIS Jo Iaquinu ay ], (g
(g ) edwaaar ], us s apead Jad sjuepnis jo Jequinu oy, (7
() edetaar (1, v s opead Jad syuspnis jo maquinu oy, (]

suonsany

‘pasod suorsanb

ay) Jo yowva aoj suoneueldys aie mojag ‘oja[dwiod 0] SANOY F] I9A0 J0O) YOTYM

BlEp SIY] SULIDYIES Ul POAJOAUL SJ0M SID(UIDWL JJBls AUB]y “I1eas [00Yds 0- L0 oY1

0] UrjB[ad SaNSSI SNOLIBA U0 UOTjBULIOjUT pajsanba staquiaw pawvoq aswwns jsed sy,

sIaquIB[y pagog] £q paso] suolsanf) J0j UOT)BULIOJU]

IMDTBIUUO.) “AIIUDAO))
s[ooyag aT[qnJ AIIUsA0))



